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ADDENDUM No. 3 

 

for 

 

Airfield Lighting Vault Expansion 

AIP # 3-33-0011-TBD-2025 

Bid # FY25-804-38 

 

at the Manchester – Boston Regional Airport 

 

Due to be opened 2:00 p.m., on April 9, 2025 

 

 

Date:                                                    March 31, 2025   

 

The attention of firms submitting proposals for the work named above is called to the following modifications to the 

documents as were issued. 

 

The items set forth herein, whether of clarification, omission, addition and/or substitution, shall be included and form 

a part of the Proposer’s submitted materials and the corresponding contract when issued.  No claim for additional 

compensation, due to lack of knowledge of the contents of this Addendum will be considered. 

 

All Proposer’s are advised that receipt of this notice and all attached material must be duly acknowledged in the space 

provided on the signature page of the proposal documents, and by the insertion of this sheet, signed, and submitted 

with your Proposal package. 

 

    

 

This form must be signed and attached to the original copy of your submission. 

 

The attached sheets contain information or clarifications requested or discussed. 

   

Receipt of Addendum No. 3 to the REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS for Airfield Lighting Vault Expansion 

at the MANCHESTER-BOSTON REGIONAL AIRPORT is hereby acknowledged. 

 

 

COMPANY NAME:  

 

SIGNED BY:  

 

NAME AND TITLE PRINTED:  

 

TELEPHONE:      FAX:   
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GENERAL 

 

In general, this addendum is accomplishing the following: 

1. Answers to questions to date. 

2. Distribution of pre-bid meeting minutes and sign-in sheets. 

3. Update to Drawings E-103, E-106, E-200-202, E-302, E-303, E-401, E-503, M-001, and P-001. 

 

QUESTIONS/CLARIFICATIONS  

Addendum Item No.1  -   

Q1:  Please confirm the required number of S1 cutout in switchgear RS-2. The drawing shows 13 units, but as there 

are 3 slots for future CCRs, shouldn’t there be 16? 

A1:  Provide an S-1 cutout for all new CCR bays that will be outfitted with a power core. Therefore provide (12) S-

1 cutouts for RS-1 and provide (13) S-1 cutouts for RS-2.  

Addendum Item No.2  -   

Q2:  Item No. 330000-1 Electrical Utility Service is an “Allowance” item.  What is the actual allowance? 

A2:  Allowance value currently set at $20,000. Refer to reissued bid form sheets included with Addendum #2. 

Addendum Item No.3  -   

Q3:  Item No. L-115-1 Electrical Manhole 8’x10’, Aircraft Rated.  There was some mention at the pre-bid 

walkthrough of a spring assisted square hatch for easier access.  However, the detail indicates a round frame and 

cover.  Can you confirm what is required?  Possibly include a catalog number. 

A3:  Spring assisted cover shall be provided for each new manhole, Extra Heavy Duty, 30”x30” opening, EJ #8196 

or equal.  

Addendum Item No.4  -   

Q4:  There seems to be a few items that don’t have a bid item in the bid form. For instance, fire alarm, grounding, 

lighting etc. don’t have a place in the bid form, so where should we put these items? Please advise.  

A4:  Please refer to G-003, Building Pay Items, Note 1. 

Addendum Item No.5  -   

Q5:  Can the 300KVA transformer that being used for the temp feed for the existing service be a “used” piece of 

equipment? Please advise. 

A5:  A “used” or rental transformer is acceptable.  Ensure that the transformer has passed testing for IEEE 

C57.12.01 and IEEE C57.12.91 standards for dry-type distribution transformers and power transformers. 

Addendum Item No.6  -   

Q6:  Can the 300KVA transformer be installed with temporary wiring means and methods since its only 

temporary? Please advise.  

A6:  Please bid as shown on E-301.  Assume flexible conduit connection from transformer secondary to conduit 

system. 

Addendum Item No.7  -   

Q7:  Is there a fire alarm manufacture for the project? I didn’t see it in the specs. Please advise.   

A7:  There is no specific manufacturer required, they just need to meet the requirements of the drawings and 

specifications. 

Addendum Item No.8  -   

Q8:  On sheet E-202 there’s a note about 2-4” RGS conduits coming from each of the new CCR switchgear line up. 

Where do these conduits terminate. Please advise.  

A8:  Install (2) 4” RGS conduits from the Cutout Bay for each CCR lineup back to the wall mounted ALCMS 

Interface Cabinet located adjacent to RS-2. 
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Addendum Item No.9  -   

Q9:  On the one- line diagram it shows 2-5” conduits from the pole to the new pad. On sheet E-505 there’s a detail 

that shows 4- 5” conduits terminating at the pad. Please confirm the number of conduits needed.  

A9:  The one-line diagram takes precedence - 2-5” conduits are needed. 

Addendum Item No.10  -   

Q10:  Do we need to provide the 4 4” for future secondaries as well? Please advise.  

A10:  The one-line diagram takes precedent - 4-3.5” conduits are needed. 

Addendum Item No.11  -   

Q11:  Does the project require any low voltage conduits from the new riser pole to the building?  Please advise.  

A11:  No. 

Addendum Item No.12  -   

Q12:  In the existing building there appears to be a grounding bar that goes around the perimeter of the electric 

room. Do we need to duplicate this in the new electric room? Please advise.  

A12:  Install ground bars as shown on Drawing E-105. 

Addendum Item No.13  -   

Q13:  On the interim one-line diagram it shows a roll up temporary generator. Who is responsible for this 

equipment?  On the final one-line diagram it shows a permanent generator. Is this in our scope? Please advise.  

A13: EC is responsible for the temporary generator.  The permanent generator will be purchased by the Airport and 

set and installed by the EC. 

Addendum Item No.14  -   

Q14:  Does this project require a place to have a tap box installed to meet NEC 700.3(F)? Please advise. 

A14:  Yes, a 1000A manual transfer switch and exterior-mounted tap box will be updated on the drawings. 

 

 

DRAWINGS 

Addendum Item No.15  -   

REMOVE Drawings E-103, E-106, E-200-202, E-302, E-303, E-401, E-503, M-001, and P-001 and REPLACE 

with Drawings E-103, E-106, E-200-202, E-302, E-303, E-401, E-503, M-001, and P-001 attached. 
 

 

 

END OF ADDENDUM #3 
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 PRE-BID CONFERENCE   
 

Project Location:  Manchester-Boston Regional Airport     Project No.     (AIP #: TBD)  

 

Work Covered:              Airfield Lighting Vault Expansion 

 

Date of Conference:  March 19, 2025    Location:     MHT Airport Board Room  

 
A. INTRODUCTIONS 

Attendees will sign in on the provided spreadsheet.   

  

B. PROJECT BIDDING PROCEDURES AND AWARD OF CONTRACT 

 

 1. Bid opening time:        2:00PM EDT on Wednesday, April 2nd, 2025 

Location:                             Manchester-Boston Regional Airport 

Board Room – 3rd Floor 

1 Airport Road 

Manchester, NH 03103 

 

Any questions answered during this meeting are not legally binding.  Any information provided 

that should be included in bid documents will be supplied in a forthcoming addendum 

 

Proposal 

Bids shall be submitted on the approved bid form(s) available from John Pelletier, 

Jacobs: john.pelletier@jacobs.com.  Reference the bid proposal section of the 

specifications and follow all instructions provided including submittal of project-

related questions.   

 

Bid Bond (Bid Security) 

Each bidder must deposit with their bid, security in the amount of no less than five 

(5%) percent of the total bid, in the form and subject to the conditions provided in 

the Instructions to Bidders in the Contract Specifications. 

 

After the actual bid submission deadline, no bidder may withdraw his/her bid until 

November 1, 2025. 

 

2. Award of Contract:  

 

The Contract will be awarded to the bidder with the lowest qualified BID.    

There are currently no additive alternates to the project (nor are any anticipated).   

The estimated total construction cost for this project including alternates is $6M. 
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If all such bids exceed the available funding, the Owner may reject all bids, may 

delete work items altogether, or make adjustments to the bid of any form that are 

mutually acceptable to the Owner and lowest qualified bidder, if necessary to bring 

the Contract awarded within funds available to finance the project. Such reduction, 

deletion or modifications of work and bid shall not constitute a basis for withdrawal 

of the proposal or for adjustment of the unit or lump sum prices bid – subject to 

the limitations described in Section 40 of the General Provisions. 

 

 3.  Time of Completion and Liquidated Damages 

 

The Contractor shall agree to complete all work within the durations outlined in the 

contract documents. The Contractor will be assessed liquidated damages in the 

sum of two thousand dollars ($2,500.00) per day for each and every calendar day 

that the project remains incomplete beyond the designated contract duration for 

each phase.   

 

 

C. PROCEDURE FOR QUESTIONS AND ADDENDUM 

 

1. Any questions or inquiries must be submitted in writing (email) to John Pelletier.  

Questions must be received by 11:00AM on Friday, March 29th, 2025. 

 

2. The Engineer will issue addenda via email and to the airport website; addenda 

will be issued not less than 48 hours prior to the time bids are due, without 

changing the bid date.   

 

3. A future addenda with all Bidder Questions answered will be provided next week.   

 

4. Addenda issued require acknowledgement of receipt on bid forms.   

 

5. Failure of any bidder to receive any such amendments shall not relieve such bidder 

from any obligation under his/her bid as submitted. 

 

6. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 

 

D.  PROJECT SPONSORS 

 

• Manchester-Boston Regional Airport 

• New Hampshire Department of Transportation 

• Federal Aviation Administration 
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E. PREQUALIFICATION STATEMENT: 

Documentation provided will be reviewed by Department of Aviation officials prior to any 

determination of award.   

 

E.  LABOR REQUIREMENTS 

 

1. The project shall be bid in accordance with New Hampshire State Law, and, 

2.  All FAA-AIP projects shall be in accordance with 49 Code of Federal Regulations 

Part 18.36 (Procurement). 

 

This includes but is not limited to the following: 

  

a. Federal Wage Rates / Minimum Wage 

For the purpose of this project, the wage rate determinations shall be 

considered the governing minimum wage and fringe to be paid.  

 

Davis Bacon Wage Rates for Rockingham County are included in the 

specifications.  The more stringent of these two shall be utilized if 

conflicting.   

 

b. Weekly payroll statements are required. Submit to Jacobs Resident Project 

Engineer Project Manager via e-mail. 

 

c. Contract Work Hours and Safety Stds. Act. 

 (overtime pay, record keeping) 

 

d. Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 - OSHA 

 

e. Access to and retention of records for three years. 

 

f. 49 Code of Federal Regulations Part 26 (Federally Assisted Contracts) 

 

g. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Requirements 

As recipient of Federal Financial Assistance, Bradley International Airport 

has a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program.  In accordance 

with the program this project has a goal of 8.0%. The bidder shall make 

good faith efforts to subcontract 8.0% of the dollar value of the prime 

contract to small business concerns owned and controlled by socially and 

economically disadvantaged individuals. In the event the project goal 

cannot be achieved, the bidder shall submit evidence of his/her good faith 

effort.  Any further coordination with DBELO for MHT will be as needed. 
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4. Buy American – See certification in Bid Proposal 

 

5. Labor and Materials, and Payment Bonds 

 

F. SCOPE OF PROJECT 

 

1. Airfield Lighting Vault Expansion 

• Existing building constructed in 1999. 

o Equipment therein no longer supported. 

• Expansion of building to house  

o Modern switchgear style installation desired 

• Ductbank to connect homeruns to airfield 

o New structure to receive homerun in TW H infield 

• Some paving/drainage/fence/site work in support of scope 

• Coordination with Eversource for utility upgrade (to 480V equipment) 

• Coordinate with owner for generator swap out 

 

Building Discussion: 

- General intent is to expand alongside the existing building. 

- Interior height of expansion will increase to house equipment 

- Existing building has architectural/MEP modifications upon removal of existing 

generator and subsequently the existing equipment. 

- Existing electrical equipment (CCRs) must remain protected in place until after 

commissioning of new equipment/ALCMS 

 

Equipment Discussion: 

- Intent is to install switchgear-style regulator lineup (480V) 

- New ALCMS with new nodes as described 

- 20-Way Ductbank and receiving manholes 

 

 

Payment: 

Work that does not fall under FAA Advisory Circulars is under A-001-1. 

Work that does fall under FAA AC’s is under those items.   
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G. PROSECUTION OF WORK 

  

1. Project Phasing:  240 Calendar Day Contract Duration: 

o Phase 1: 240 Days 

o Phase 2A: 67 Days   

o Phase 2B: 28 Days   

 

2. Coordination with Airport required on a daily basis.  Adherence to the SPCD that 

the contractor will provide in support of the CSPP will be required by the 

Contractor.   

 

3. Taxiway closure markers and barricades will be handled by the contractor and must 

be coordinated in advance.  Any interruption to airfield operations must be 

coordinated with the airport in advance.  

 

H. OPERATIONAL SAFETY ON AIRPORTS (FAA AC 150/5370-2) 

 

1. General:  Safety of contract   

 

2. Under no circumstances shall private vehicles be allowed access to the airfield 

work areas. 

 

3. Accurate scheduling and coordination with the Owner/Engineer is required.  

 

4. Contractor to provide airport approved gate guard for Phase 2 and enforce all 

airport/TSA mandates for security; Phase 1 does not require a gate guard.  

Escorts will be provided by the airport in coordination with the contractor.     

 

5. Operational Safety Notes: 

a. Must follow the Construction Safety and Phasing Plan (CSPP) 

b. Construction barricades & closure markers, as shown on CSPP &      

Phasing drawings 

c. Access routes must be kept clean as needed for airport traffic, 

ARFF vehicles, and operations. 

d. All work areas must be swept prior to departing the airport daily.   

e. All airfield lighting must be operational prior to departing the 

airport daily. 

f. The Airport will inspect all areas prior to reopening to air traffic.  

a. The Contractor must be present for all inspections and 

correct any found issues prior to reopening the area. 
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I.  OTHER COMMENTS 

 

1. Anticipated Award of Contract is in Mid-Summer, 2025.   

2. Anticipated Start date is late September, 2025. 

 

J.   Questions? 

 

K.   Field Visit  
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CCR SWITCHGEAR RS-1 PLAN AND ELEVATION
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CCR SWITCHGEAR RS-1 SCHEMATIC PLAN
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